
 

Agenda compiled by: 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
 

 
Governance Services 
0113 37 88664 

 
 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 

Wednesday, 4th September, 2019 at 1.00 pm 
 
 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
J Blake (Chair) 
R Charlwood 
D Coupar 
J Lewis 
L Mulherin 
J Pryor 
M Rafique 
F Venner 
 

A Carter S Golton  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Public Document Pack



B 
 

CONFIDENTIAL AND EXEMPT ITEMS 
 

The reason for confidentiality or exemption is stated on the agenda and on each of the reports in 
terms of Access to Information Procedure Rules 9.2 or 10.4(1) to (7). The number or numbers 
stated in the agenda and reports correspond to the reasons for exemption / confidentiality below: 
 
9.0  Confidential information – requirement to exclude public access 
9.1 The public must be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of 

the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that confidential 
information would be disclosed. Likewise, public access to reports, background papers, 
and minutes will also be excluded. 

 

9.2 Confidential information means 
(a)  information given to the Council by a Government Department on terms which 

forbid its public disclosure or  
(b)  information the disclosure of which to the public is prohibited by or under another 

Act or by Court Order. Generally personal information which identifies an 
individual, must not be disclosed under the data protection and human rights 
rules.  

 

10.0 Exempt information – discretion to exclude public access 
10. 1 The public may be excluded from meetings whenever it is likely in view of the nature of 

the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings that exempt information 
would be disclosed provided: 
(a) the meeting resolves so to exclude the public, and that resolution identifies the 

proceedings or part of the proceedings to which it applies, and 
(b) that resolution states by reference to the descriptions in Schedule 12A to the 

Local Government Act 1972 (paragraph 10.4 below) the description of the 
exempt information giving rise to the exclusion of the public. 

(c) that resolution states, by reference to reasons given in a relevant report or 
otherwise, in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.  

 

10.2 In these circumstances, public access to reports, background papers and minutes will 
also be excluded.  

 
10.3 Where the meeting will determine any person’s civil rights or obligations, or adversely 

affect their possessions, Article 6 of the Human Rights Act 1998 establishes a 
presumption that the meeting will be held in public unless a private hearing is necessary 
for one of the reasons specified in Article 6. 

 
10. 4 Exempt information means information falling within the following categories (subject to 

any condition): 
1 Information relating to any individual 
2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
3  Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 

(including the authority holding that information). 
4 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 

consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising 
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or officer-
holders under the authority. 

5 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be 
maintained in legal proceedings. 

6 Information which reveals that the authority proposes – 
(a)  to give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which 

requirements are imposed on a person; or 
(b)  to make an order or direction under any enactment 

7 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime 

 
 



3 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 15.2 of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded) 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 15.2, written 
notice of an appeal must be received by the Head 
of Governance Services at least 24 hours before 
the meeting) 
 

 

2   
 

  

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which officers 

have identified as containing exempt information 
within the meaning of Section 100I of the Local 
Government Act 1972, and where officers 
consider that the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the officers 

recommendation in respect of the above 
information. 

 
3 If the recommendation is accepted, to formally 

pass the following resolution:- 
 

RESOLVED –  That, in accordance with 
Regulation 4 of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the 
public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of those parts of the agenda 
designated as exempt  on the grounds that it is 
likely, in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that 
if members of the press and public were present 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information. 

 
 
 

 



Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 

D 
 

3   
 

  

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes) 
 

 

4   
 

  

  DECLARATION OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS 
 
To disclose or draw attention to any disclosable 
pecuniary interests for the purposes of Section 31 
of the Localism Act 2011 and paragraphs 13-16 of 
the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

   CLIMATE CHANGE, TRANSPORT AND 
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 
 
 

 

5   
 

  

  LEEDS CORE STRATEGY SELECTIVE REVIEW 
UPDATE 
 
To consider the report of the Director of City 
Development which seeks Executive Board’s 
recommendation to full Council that it notes the 
Inspector’s final Report on the Core Strategy 
Selective Review (CSSR); accepts the Inspector’s 
recommended ‘Main Modifications’ and adopts the 
CSSR (subject to any further non material 
additional modifications being made in advance of 
consideration by Council). 
 
(Cover report attached, with appendices to 
follow) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 - 8 



Item 
No 
K=Key 
Decision 

Ward Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

 

E 
 

   INCLUSIVE GROWTH AND CULTURE 
 
 

 

6   
 

  

  UPDATE ON LEEDS CITY COUNCIL'S 
PREPARATIONS FOR THE UK'S EXIT FROM 
THE EUROPEAN UNION 
 
To consider a report which provides the Board with 
an update on the preparations being made by the 
Local Authority regarding the UK’s exit from the 
European Union. 
 
(Report to follow) 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Third Party Recording  
 
Recording of this meeting is allowed to enable those not present to see or hear the proceedings 
either as they take place (or later) and to enable the reporting of those proceedings.  A copy of the 
recording protocol is available from the contacts named on the front of this agenda. 
 
Use of Recordings by Third Parties– code of practice 
 

a) Any published recording should be accompanied by a statement of when and where the 
recording was made, the context of the discussion that took place, and a clear identification 
of the main speakers and their role or title. 

b) Those making recordings must not edit the recording in a way that could lead to 
misinterpretation or misrepresentation of the proceedings or comments made by 
attendees.  In particular there should be no internal editing of published extracts; 
recordings may start at any point and end at any point but the material between those 
points must be complete. 
 

Webcasting 
 
Please note – the publically accessible parts of this meeting will be filmed for live or subsequent 
broadcast via the City Council’s website. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is to be filmed. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of Director of City Development 

Report to Executive Board 

Date: 4th September 2019 

Subject: Leeds Core Strategy Selective Review Update 

Are specific electoral wards affected?   Yes  No 

If yes, name(s) of ward(s): ALL 

Has consultation been carried out?   Yes  No 

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration?  

 Yes  No 

Will the decision be open for call-in?   Yes  No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes  No 

If relevant, access to information procedure rule number:  

Appendix number:  

 
Summary  
 
1. Main issues 

1.1 The adoption of the Core Strategy Selective Review (CSSR) will be a significant 
achievement for Leeds.  With the recently adopted Site Allocation Plan the city now 
has an up-to-date Local Plan with a new housing requirement and a good supply of 
housing land for development.  Development activity in Leeds is already buoyant 
with 3,521 housing completions during 2018/19 in excess of the new requirement.  
However, the CSSR is not only concerned with quantity of development; new policy 
will expect new development to meet excellent standards of space and amenity; 
Policy EN1 will continue to expect excellent levels of sustainability by exceeding 
building regulations by 20% in terms of carbon emissions from new buildings.  

1.2 This report envisages that Executive Board will be able to recommend to Council 
that it adopt the CSSR upon receipt of the Inspector’s Report.  Due to the timing of 
the estimated receipt of the report and the agenda publication date a supplementary 
paper will be required which provides an updated version of this report alongside the 
Inspector’s Report, schedule of MMs and the Adoption Version of the CSSR. 

1.3 The Council has a statutory duty to prepare a Local Plan and review it so that 
policies are relevant and up to date.  The Leeds Core Strategy (CS) was adopted in 

Report author: Robin Coghlan / Martin 
Elliot Tel: 0113 378 7634 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



November 2014 and forms the key strategic and spatial planning framework for 
Leeds. 

1.4 Executive Board resolved to undertake a selective review of the Core Strategy in 
February 2017.  It agreed a targeted scope focussing on: updating the housing 
requirement for a revised plan period of 2017 and 2033, updating affordable housing 
and green space policies, introducing new policies on housing standards (size and 
accessibility) and updating the sustainable construction Policies EN1 and EN2 to 
reflect national advice.  The CSSR also includes a policy on electric vehicle 
charging.   

1.5 Following two rounds of public consultation on draft policies, which attracted over 
1,000 individual points of representation, the CSSR was submitted for independent 
examination in August 2018, with the hearing sessions taking place over two weeks 
in February 2019.  Claire Sherratt (DIP URP MRTPI) has been appointed as the 
planning inspector, who was one of the Site Allocations Plan (SAP) Inspectors.  Her 
report on that separate but complementary Plan was considered by the Council and 
the Plan was adopted on 10th July.  The adopted SAP addresses the fact that the 
CSSR plans for fewer homes than the original CS.    

1.6 Following the hearing sessions of the CSSR in February 2019 the Inspector issued 
a schedule of Main Modifications (MMs) which she considered were necessary to 
make the plan sound and legally compliant.   On 16 May 2019 Executive Board 
approved that these MMs be subject to public consultation.  This took place 
between May and June 2019.  Following consideration of representations received 
during the consultation period, the Inspector will issue her final Report.   

1.7 The Council anticipates receipt of the Inspector’s Report in advance of the 
Executive Board meeting.  Upon receipt, this report will be supplemented with the 
Inspector’s Report included as an appendix.  The Inspector’s Report should confirm 
that the Publication Draft (2017) version of the Plan as amended by the Inspector’s 
recommended MMs is sound.  The City Council will then be in a position to formally 
adopt the Plan. 

2. Best Council Plan Implications 

2.1 The Local Plan for Leeds implements Best Council Plan (BCP) priorities for 
regeneration, inclusive economic growth, high quality housing, sustainable 
infrastructure, and environmental enhancement; having a key role to play in shaping 
the future form, location and overall pattern of development across the entire 
Metropolitan District.  Ensuring that it is kept up to date and reviewed every 5 years 
in line with national guidance is important in ensuring that the Council can place 
weight on its policies.   

2.2 The selective policies being reviewed in the CSSR specifically help to deliver BCP 
priorities for housing, sustainable infrastructure, a child friendly city and an age 
friendly city.  The greenspace and accessible housing policies in particular help to 
deliver the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, whilst the housing policies support the 
Inclusive Growth Strategy by supporting investment in the right places. 

2.3 Policy EN8 policy on Electric Vehicle Charging Points helps to meet the BCP 
objective on Sustainable Infrastructure and to deliver the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy because it helps to improve air quality for people living in Leeds.  

Page 2



2.4 Policies, EN2, EN4 and EN8, are directly relevant for the delivery of the Council’s 
commitment under the Climate Emergency.    

3. Resource Implications 

3.1 Preparation of the CSSR, given its targeted nature, has had relatively limited 
resource implications and has been effectively managed within existing 
departmental budgets and staffing.   

4. Recommendations 

4.1 It is recommended that Executive Board recommends that Council: 

a) Notes the Inspector’s final Report of the Leeds Core Strategy Selective Review 
and accepts the Main Modifications of the Inspector as detailed in her Report 
(August 2019) at Appendix 1 (to follow); 

b) Adopts the Core Strategy Selective Review (version for Adoption) at Appendix 
2 with effect from 11th September 2019, pursuant to Section 23 of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended)(to follow); and, 

c) Notes the Core Strategy policies that will be superseded by the Plan (as set out 
in Appendix 1a of the Plan at Appendix 2).

 

1 Purpose of this report 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Executive Board’s recommendation that Council 
notes the Inspector’s final Report on the Core Strategy Selective Review and accepts 
the Inspector’s recommended MMs and adopts the Plan (subject to any further non 
material additional modifications being made in advance of consideration by Council). 

2 Background information 

2.1 The Council has a statutory duty to prepare a Local Plan and review it so that policies 
are relevant and up to date.  A Local Plan can be one document or in Leeds’ case 
separate documents.  The Leeds Core Strategy (CS) was adopted in November 2014 
and forms the key strategic and spatial planning framework for Leeds.  Central to this 
approach is the integration of a range of economic, environmental and social policy 
objectives and the setting of a housing requirement of 70,000 homes (net) between 
2012 and 2028 at a rate of 3,600 homes p.a., rising to 4,700 homes p.a.  This was 
based on national guidance at the time and household projections (which were far 
higher than the final adopted figure in the CS) and was examined by an independent 
Government Inspector.   

2.2 Executive Board resolved to undertake a selective review of the Core Strategy in 
February 2017.  It agreed a targeted scope focussing on: updating the housing 
requirement for a revised plan period of 2017 and 2033, updating affordable housing 
and green space policies, introducing new policies on housing standards (size and 
accessibility) and updating the sustainable construction Policies EN1 and EN2 to 
reflect national advice.  In addition to these matters the Council also reflected upon 
messages from Government and consultees on electric vehicle technologies and 
introduced a policy on electric vehicle charging points as part of its Publication Draft 
Policies.  

Page 3



2.3 Whilst the CSSR was prepared as quickly as practicable, there were delays to the 
process caused by changes to national guidance and delays in the release of up to 
date household projections.   

3 Main issues 

Preparing the Plan 

3.1 The Plan has been subject to proportionate and ongoing consultation and 
engagement, including setting up a reference group for the Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment (comprising representatives of community groups and the Leeds Older 
People’s Forum) along with specific groups with an interest in accessible housing.  
City Development has worked across the Council linking in with the Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy and the accessible homes policy is now being used as a key 
indicator for Age Friendly Leeds.  Development Plan Panel has been involved from 
the outset with Members attending workshops on the main issues identified and 
representatives of the Panel on the SHMA reference group.  At each stage 
consultation activity has been reported back to Development Plan Panel.  The Plan 
was considered at a meeting of Scrutiny Board (Infrastructure, Investment and 
Inclusive Growth) on 20th June 2018.  

Sustainability Appraisal 

3.2 The Sustainability Appraisal is an iterative process and the SA documents and 
addenda prepared throughout the process are available on the Council’s web-site 
here.  The SA process will be set out in an SA Adoption Statement which the Council, 
in line with the Regulations, is required to prepare once the CSSR is Adopted. This 
will be placed on the web-site. 

Examination of the Plan 

3.3 The CSSR was submitted for independent examination in August 2018, with the 
Hearing sessions taking place over two weeks in February 2019.  Claire Sherratt (DIP 
URP MRTPI) was appointed as the planning inspector, who was one of the Site 
Allocations Plan (SAP) Inspectors. 

3.4 Throughout the hearings, the Inspector considered whether the CSSR met the legal 
requirements (i.e. is legally compliant) and the tests of soundness (i.e. for the Plan to 
be Positively Prepared, Justified, Effective and Consistent with national policy). She 
also considered whether  evidence had been provided of a continuous process of 
engagement, collaboration and cooperation with neighbouring authorities and other 
prescribed bodies (the ‘Duty to Cooperate’) and an appraisal of the Plan’s effects on 
environmental, social and economic objectives (Sustainability Appraisal (SA/SEA 
Regulations)) and the Habitats Regulations.  The CSSR hearings provided an 
opportunity to those who wished to raise issues with the Council about the Plan at a 
round table discussion.  The Inspector has also taken account of all written 
representations made to the Plan.   

3.5 Following the hearing sessions the Inspector issued a schedule of Main Modifications 
(MMs) which she considered were necessary to make the plan sound and legally 
compliant.   On 16 May 2019 Executive Board approved that the MMs be subject to 
public consultation.  This took place between 17th May and 28th June 2019.   

3.6 The next stage in the process is the issuing of Inspector’s report.  This will have 

Page 4

https://www.leeds.gov.uk/planning/planning-policy/emerging-local-plan/core-strategy-selective-review/cssr-proposed-main-modifications-consultation


considered representations received during the consultation period on MMs.   

Inspector’s Report and Adoption 

3.7 To be supplemented upon receipt of the Inspector’s Report and commentary provided 
as a supplement to this report.   

Alignment with the Site Allocations Plan 

3.8 The Site Allocations Plan (SAP) contains land allocations for housing, employment, 
green space and retail and was adopted by Council on 10th July 2019.  The SAP and 
CSSR have been subject to two separate plan-making processes and whilst they 
have been examined by the same Inspector the examination of the CSSR was 
outside of the scope of the SAP.  However, the Inspectors, through Policy HGR1 of 
the SAP, and through the deletion of 32 sites which were initially proposed to be 
released from the Green Belt as part of the SAP process, ensured that the lower 
housing trajectory of the CSSR was taken into account by the SAP.  Moreover, the 
adopted SAP requires that the Council review the implications of the adopted new 
housing requirement between 2017 and 2033 contained in the CSSR in the context 
of allocations in place to deliver it.  This will be done through a SAP Review which 
will start as soon as the CSSR is adopted. 

Next Steps 

3.9 In accordance with the Act, the Plan can only be adopted if it includes all of the MMs 
recommended by the Inspector. Once adopted, the Plan will form part of the statutory 
Leeds Local Plan and will be a material consideration when determining planning 
applications. 

3.10 Once adopted the Plan will supersede some of the policies in the Core Strategy. 
Appendix 1a of the Plan sets out those policies. 

3.11 Following adoption the Council will publish the adoption documents and Adoption 
Statement, in accordance with regulations 26 and 35 of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. The Council will notify all 
persons on the Local Plan database and send a copy of the Adoption Statement to 
the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government. 

3.12 Upon Adoption of the CSSR the Council will publish on its web-site a Policies Map, 
which is a spatial expression of the policies and site boundaries within the Plan. 

3.13 In addition to the MMs recommended by the Inspector, a number of additional 
modifications are required, which do not materially affect the policies set out in the 
Plan and simply serve to correct typographical and factual errors identified in the 
Publication Draft version of the Plan or other minor updates. The Schedule of 
Additional Modifications has been published on the Council’s web-site. These 
modifications have not been considered or recommended by the Inspector nor 
consulted upon as they do not relate to the issues of the soundness of the Plan but 
rather are to ensure the Plan is factually correct and reads correctly. Some of these 
additional modifications were previously agreed by Council when the Plan was 
submitted for examination in August 2018. They have been incorporated into the 
adoption version of the Plan at Appendix 2. 

3.14 Leading up to Adoption of the Plan by Council, officers will carry out briefings with 

Page 5



ward members as well as internal officer training sessions on implementation of the 
Plan. 

3.15 The SAP Policy HGR1 requires that once the CSSR is adopted the Council will 
undertake a review and look again at whether there is a need for additional land 
allocations after 2023. This matter is programmed for discussion at a meeting of the 
Council’s Development Plan Panel in October 2019. 

3.16 Leeds, like many other local authorities across the Country, suffered from having put 
a plan in place based on higher official household projections, only to see these 
reduce in subsequent years.  This put Leeds in an invidious position in terms of 
demonstrating a 5 year housing land supply and led to the loss of 11 planning appeals 
(for 1,500 homes).  Whilst some of these sites were identified in the SAP for housing 
in any case, their release came early and outside of that Plan making process.  
Nonetheless during this period the Council has focussed on stimulating housing 
delivery in the most sustainable parts of the District such as the 1,000 home scheme 
in East Leeds involving a partnership between the Council, Keepmoat and Strata 
Homes and over 15 city centre schemes which are now under construction. 

3.17 Adoption of the CSSR is a major step in having an up to date Local Plan in place, 
which accords with Government requirements for local planning authorities to 
regularly review and update plans in whole or in part.  It also helps to prevent 
speculative developments (through a plan-led approach which clarifies the latest 
demographic evidence around household growth) and provides clarity for investors 
and local people about the quantity of housing needed in Leeds for the long term as 
well as the quality and reducing the carbon footprint of housing development within 
local communities. The CSSR will also contribute to improvement in air quality 
through adoption of the electric charging point policy EN8. 

 

4 Corporate considerations 

4.1 Consultation and engagement 

4.1.1 The preparation of a CSSR has had two stages of public consultation in accordance 
with the Council adopted Statement of Community Involvement (2007).  Over 1000 
comments were received from over 200 interested parties.  The Inspector was made 
aware of each of the responses and in addition, objectors had the opportunity to 
publically state their case at the hearing sessions of the examination. 

4.2 Equality and diversity / cohesion and integration 

4.2.1 Equality has been an integral part of the preparation of the CSSR. Due regard has 
been given to the equality characteristics and an equality screening has been 
prepared. Equality, diversity, cohesion and integration have been important 
considerations in the formulation of policies of the Core Strategy Selective Review. 
Equality Impact Assessment screenings have been undertaken at key stages of the 
process to ensure that equality considerations are embedded in policies and a 
screening has been carried out at this stage which is attached at appendix 3. 

Page 6



4.3 Council policies and the Best Council Plan 

4.3.1 The Best Council Plan (2019/20 – 2020/21) is relevant to the CSSR in terms of its 
priorities for Housing, Inclusive Growth, Health & Wellbeing, Sustainable 
Infrastructure, Child-friendly Leeds, Age-friendly Leeds, and Safe & Strong 
Communities.  

4.3.2 The quantity of homes that Leeds plans for will have ramifications for inclusive 
economic growth by ensuring that Leeds is supported by the right number of new 
homes (which reflects proportionate economic ambitions) of the right type to meet the 
needs of a growing population. The CSSR will also provide the ability to improve the 
range and quality of dwellings delivered to ensure the needs of particular groups such 
as the elderly are met, and that health and wellbeing of residents is improved. Policy 
H10 (Accessible Housing Standards) should be of particular benefit to households 
with mobility issues including the elderly and support self-care, choice and control. In 
terms of public health and wellbeing, there are important linkages between the CSSR 
policies. Improved Space and Access Standards, the provision of Affordable Housing 
(in meeting housing needs), together with the protection and provision of green space 
make an important contribution to local amenity and quality of life across the District. 

Climate Emergency 

4.3.3 A Climate Emergency was declared by the City Council on 27th March 2019.  It is 
therefore critical that the statutory plan-making process contributes to the future 
proofing of the District to mitigate and adapt to the consequences of climate change 
(including the need for carbon reduction to meet agreed targets). 

4.3.4 Policy EN2 requires residential development to be built to use less water than the 
regular building regulations standard. In addition Policy EN8, concerning electric 
vehicle charging points in new development has been enhanced by the Inspector’s 
modification to anticipate future infrastructure expansion. It should also be noted that 
the Inspector modified the CSSR to delete proposed changes to Policy EN1 so that 
the CS retains the existing policy of requiring that new homes achieve 20% better 
than building regulations in standards of design and use of materials to reduce carbon 
emissions.  This situation arose as a result of inconsistencies at a national level 
between a written ministerial statement and planning guidance, which have now been 
clarified.   

4.3.5 An overarching point is that all of the policies have been subject to Sustainability 
Appraisal. This assessed impact on 23 sustainability objectives including 
sustainability objective SA11 “Climate Change Mitigation (Greenhouse gas 
emissions)”.  

4.4 Resources, procurement and value for money 

4.4.1 The cost of preparation of the CSSR has been met from existing budgets. 

4.5 Legal implications, access to information, and call-in 

4.5.1 The preparation of the CSSR as a development plan document is in compliance with 
the provisions of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) Regulations 2012 (as amended). As a 
development plan document the CSSR falls within the Council’s budget and policy 
framework and this report is not therefor subject to call-in. 

Page 7



4.6 Risk management 

4.6.1 The Risk to the Council of not having up to date Plans in place, exposes the District 
to speculative, potentially unsustainable development and a lack of certainty for 
investors. This is detrimental to communities and to the provision of co-ordinated and 
well planned infrastructure. In addition, with the Local Plan in place, the Council is 
better able to establish and defend a five year housing land supply position and to 
take a plan led approach to growth and investment, consistent with the requirements 
of national planning guidance. 

4.6.2 Adoption of the Plan by the Council will trigger a six week challenge period within 
which any person aggrieved by the decision to adopt the Plan may make an 
application to the High Court under section 113 of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 on the grounds that either (a) the document is not within the 
appropriate power; or (b) a procedural requirement has not been complied with.  The 
adoption of the Plan can only be challenged on legal grounds and not simply because 
a person disagrees with the Inspector’s recommendations. 

5 Conclusions 

5.1 The adoption of the CSSR will be a significant step in supporting our ambition to 
strengthen the economy in a compassionate way as set out in the Best Council Plan 
through inclusive economic growth, improving housing growth and standards, the 
provision of green spaces for health and well-being and mitigating of and adaptation 
to the consequences of climate change. 

6 Recommendations 

6.1 It is recommended that Executive Board recommends that Council: 
 

a) Notes the Inspector’s final Report of the Leeds Core Strategy Selective Review 
and accepts the Main Modifications of the Inspector as detailed in her Report 
(August 2019) at Appendix 1 (to follow); 

b) Adopts the Core Strategy Selective Review (version for Adoption) at Appendix 2 
with effect from 11th September 2019, pursuant to Section 23 of the Planning 
and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) (to follow); and, 

c) Notes the Core Strategy policies that will be superseded by the Plan (as set out 
in Appendix 1a of the Plan at Appendix 2).  

7 Appendices 

Appendix 1: Inspector’s Report and Main Modifications to the Publication Draft 
CSSR (to follow) 
Appendix 2: Adoption Version Core Strategy Selective Review (to follow) 
Appendix 3: Equalities Impact Assessment (to follow) 
 

8 Background documents1  

8.1 None 

                                            
1 The background documents listed in this section are available to download from the council’s website, unless they 
contain confidential or exempt information.  The list of background documents does not include published works. 

Page 8


	Agenda
	5 Leeds Core Strategy Selective Review Update

